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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – MARCH 27, 2008

(Time Noted – 7:04 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of the Board is that the applicant will be called upon to step forward, state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board will then ask the applicant any questions it may have and then any questions or comments from the public will be entertained. After all of the Public Hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with Counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. Then the Board will consider the applications in the order heard. The Board will try to render a decision this evening however they have up to 62 days to reach a determination. And, I would ask that if anyone has a cell phone to please turn it off so that we will not be interrupted. And also when speaking please speak into the microphone. And I would also like to inform everyone that the Members of the Board have all made site visits.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER




DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

JAMES MANLEY - ABSENT

CODE COMPLIANCE: GERALD CANFIELD, JOSEPH MATTINA

(Time Noted – 7:05 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MARCH 27, 2008              (Time Noted – 7:05 PM) 


NORTHEAST REALTY HOLDINGS, LLC
            CORPORATE BLVD & RTE 17K







(95-1-69.24 changed to 95-1-76) IB ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variance for more than the allowed 25% of the rooms to include kitchens to construct a 140-room hotel with a kitchen in each room.

Chairperson Cardone: I have a request from Northeast Realty Holdings, in regard to the above referenced area variance application, on behalf of the Northeast Realty Holdings we write to request that the Board's consideration of the application be adjourned from Thursday, March 27th to the next scheduled meeting which will be Thursday, April 24th at 7PM. Do we have any discussion on this request? 

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion?

Mr. McKelvey: So moved.

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.  

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: 

Mr. Hughes: Excuse me. Do they give a reason or…?

Mr. Donovan: Yes, the reason is…is that the Planning Board hasn't closed out their SEQRA review so we're not in a position to take any action even if we wanted to. If we don't have the information, we couldn't vote.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I just wanted to make that clear. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.


                      Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

                                



  James Manley: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: If there is anyone here in reference to that application, they will be heard on Thursday, April 24th at 7:00 o'clock.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER




DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

JAMES MANLEY - ABSENT 

(Time Noted – 7:07 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MARCH 27, 2008              (Time Noted – 7:07 PM) 


MARK & ELAINA MILLIKEN

34 CEDAR COURT, NBGH 







(8-2-8) A/R ZONE





Applicant is seeking area variances for the side yard setbacks and the maximum building coverage to build a rear addition on residence.

Chairperson Cardone: Our first applicant this evening Mark and Elaina Milliken

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on March 18th  and in The Mid-Hudson Times on March 19th. The applicant sent out fourteen registered letters, fourteen were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. Lucas: Hello, my name is Mike Lucas and I'm a friend and contractor for the Millikens. They're here tonight and I just told them if they want I could help them along with this. So it's just we're planning to put an addition on the back of the house as with the plans that were supplied to the Building Department and with a request for a variance for side yard and building coverage.

Chairperson Cardone: Does the Board have any questions on this application?

Ms. Eaton: You are not adding any bedrooms to this house?

Mr. Lucas: Excuse me?

Ms. Eaton: You are not adding any bedrooms to this house?

Mr. Lucas: No, we're doing away with one bedroom and adding basically a master bedroom so it stays a three-bedroom house but we've increased, if you look, you'll see that we increased the size of the septic tank anyway.

Ms. Eaton: Yes, I did see that.

Mr. Lucas: Yes. In fact, I don't know who made the site visit but you'll see that we have a permit, it should be on file we're putting a new septic tank in.

Ms. Drake: It looks like you already started construction?

Mr. Lucas: No, we've started exploring for the septic tank and there is a big ledge that comes off the side of the hill and we wanted to see how far the ledge went and it does go almost right to the middle of the house so that whole side over there… you'll see the rocks and took pictures of all that so we had to move the tank out farther and you'll see where that hole is finally…it should be on there…that's what the excavation is for.  

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Mr. McKelvey: You've got a big hill back there.

Mr. Lucas: A big hill.

Ms. Eaton: Are you taking the shed down?

Mr. Lucas: Well I think the shed is way in the back. I don't think so.

Ms. Eaton: Yes, it is. You're nearly doubling the size of the house, correct? 

Mr. Lucas: Yes, approximately, yes. It is a small house I think its 24 x 40.

Chairperson Cardone: I'd like to read into the record the report from the Orange County Department of Planning:

In this case the proposed action to expand the existing residence will not have any impact on State or County facilities nor does it have any inter-municipal concerns and that's -Local Determination.

Mr. Lucas: They don't have Town water there either. They have a well. And the setback even with the addition they still have almost, I think, 70 some feet for the back of the property and the sides don't encroach any farther than the existing house. They just follow the lines of the house that's there so basically the house is going to look almost the same but and it's going to look like a ranch. I did talk to the neighbors and I don't see any of them here and I know its hearsay but there was no objection. Everybody…they all, it's a nice neighborhood they all get along. One neighbor asked to come tonight and speak for them and they said they didn't think they needed it so.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public?  Anything else from the Board? Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Ms. Drake: I make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.    

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

James Manley: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Lucas: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 7:10 PM)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – MARCH 27, 2008       (Resumption for decision: 9:52 PM)

MARK & ELAINA MILLIKEN

34 CEDAR COURT, NBGH 







(8-2-8) A/R ZONE






Applicant is seeking area variances for the side yard setbacks and the maximum building coverage to build a rear addition on residence.

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming its regular meeting. On the first application of Mark and Elaina Milliken, 34 Cedar Court seeking an area variance for the side yard setbacks and the maximum building coverage to build a rear addition on residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Ms. Drake: I think we discussed it pretty much during the Public Hearing. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval? 

Ms. Drake: I'll make a motion to approve the application.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

James Manley: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.


PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER




DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

JAMES MANLEY - ABSENT

(Time Noted – 9:53 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MARCH 27, 2008              (Time Noted – 7:10 PM) 


J. MICHAEL ESPOSITO


38 O’DELL CIRCLE, NBGH







(51-1-16) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the front yard setback, the rear yard setback, the maximum building coverage and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the height to remove and replace with new single-family residence.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant J. Michael Esposito.

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on March 18th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on March 19th. The applicant sent out sixteen registered letters, fifteen were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order. 

Chairperson Cardone: Could you identify yourself?

Mr. Esposito: Hi. My name is Michael Esposito, 38 O'Dell Circle, Newburgh, NY out on Orange Lake. What we're doing is we are tearing down our existing home, which was my grandmother's third generation home of the Esposito family, and we want to build a new construction on the lot and that's what we're here to get approved.

Chairperson Cardone: So, you're tearing down that nice brick building?

Mr. Esposito: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have questions from the Board?

Mr. Maher: Yes. One thing, Jerry?  It shows that they are increasing the degree of non-conformity for height but it doesn't show it on the chart there as far as what the further non-conformity is and its circled yes as far as increasing the degree of it.

Mr. Canfield: New height? 

Mr. Maher: Yes.

Mr. McKelvey: It doesn't show it?

Mr. Mattina: Joe Mattina, from Code Compliance. They re-submitted a new set of plans. They are still increasing the degree of height. They took of the cupola off the top of the building. I don't have the plans. I don't know the exact. 

Mr. Maher: Is this the…this is the new one?

Mr. Hughes: Do you know the total figure, maximum height? 

Mr. Esposito: It is 27'4". 

Mr. Hughes: So that's under. 

Mr. Esposito: And you're allowed 35.

Mr. Hughes: And you're allowed 35.

Mr. Mattina: Right, but its non-conforming so its increasing the degree for that.

Mr. Hughes: For that part of the house it's a furtherance of the non-conformity? O.K.

Understand?

Mr. Donovan: No. 

Mr. Hughes: The part where the cupola is and the highest part of the house is in an area that is considered to be a furtherance of the non-conformity that exists in that part of the house.

Mr. Donovan: But are we over the max? That's the part that I'm not following.

Mr. Hughes: When you go out if you're on the spot of a footprint and you go to a second story, you furthering the non-conformity. If you do a cupola then you further it again.

Mr. Donovan: But there is no exclusion in the code for a cupola?

Mr. Esposito: We removed the cupola.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. well, it's on the plans. 

Mr. Mattina: No, as far as the building itself it's still non-conforming, it's going to be higher than it is now so they are still increasing the degree of. But with the cupola or not it still going to be taller than it is now. It’s a non-conforming building as it is.

Mr. Hughes: And, how tall is the cupola on top of the 27.

Mr. Esposito: And just so everyone knows, we, my wife and I, decided to remove the cupola because we saw that there was a height variance that was required. So we removed that and it actually lowered the height of the house I believe from 35 to…

Ms. Esposito: From 30 feet.

Mr. Esposito: From 30 to 27'4". I think it may be helpful if…these are… I don't know if everyone has it but these are the revised plans without the cupola. I understand that everyone is staying it's non-conforming but just so everyone has a picture of what the new lakeside view without the cupola which is here and this is the garage on the other side.

Mr. Hughes: Could I call on counsel to further expound on the definitions here that we're juggling so that everybody in the audience and the applicant can understand clearly?

Mr. Donovan: Which definitions would those be?

Mr. Hughes: Well, we have a degree of non-conformity that's going up because you are adding something over something that exists that doesn't conform. So generally, the parameters on the outside are the bigger concern rather than the airspace and I want everybody here to keep that in mind. Maybe you don't have to remove your height or your cupola? It's up to the Board's decision if they'll allow that part of the non-conformity to continue on.

Mr. Donovan: I still want to…tell me what the original, I don't know that I necessarily follow what the original non-conformity is?

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I can see the look in your eye you didn't get it. All right. Here is what we're looking at. We've got a building here that doesn't conform and this part of the building…

Mr. Donovan: Why doesn't it conform?

Mr. Hughes: It's over the line; it didn't have a big enough side yard…

Mr. Donovan: It's got the side yard issue. What's non-conforming about the height though that's the part I'm not…? 

Mr. Hughes: If part of that building doesn't conform and you build over the top of it you are furthering the non-conformity. 

Mr. Donovan: Well, O.K. I'm not sure that I agree with that.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. well Jerry, we've had this problem before and that's why I want to get it clear on the record here. 

Mr. Donovan: Because it's conforming as to height, it's non-conforming as to the side yard and obviously then if you build on you're increasing the degree of that non-conformity but if you don't have a non-conformity relative to height in the first instance I am not sure that I follow the logic that even though you are going up, we are still under 35 feet that we've increased the degree of non-conformity because that doesn't exist.

Mr. Hughes: The second floor is the non-conformity not the height.

Chairperson Cardone: Are you under the 35 feet?

Ms. Esposito: Yes.

Mr. Esposito: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: Sounds like my house.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. everybody clear now? You understand now why I brought this up to emphasize the balance of this situation? 

Mr. Donovan: Joe, can I get the benefit of your input on the height issue?

Mr. Mattina: Yes, the way we've always done it is if it's a non-conforming building and it has a non-conforming side yard and it's one and a half stories high now you have a two-story non-conforming building you've increased the degree of non-conforming height because that entire building is non-conforming. You've increased…

Mr. Donovan: I follow that but if it's not over the 35 feet to begin with then we haven't increased the non-conformity relative to height.

Mr. Hughes: Maybe the infraction word should be interjected here. You have another infraction on the non-conformity not only are you adding a story over a non-conforming corner but now you're putting something that's too tall. That's not the situation here.

Mr. Donovan: Well I agree that we've increased the degree of the non-conformity but I don't think we've increased the relative to height because we were never non-conforming relative to height.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: Yes, you're right.

Mr. Mattina: Well, if I have a side wall of a building and it's non-conforming and I run that side wall longer I've increased the non-conformity of the side wall in structure.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Mattina: Well the same with the height if I have a 10 foot high building that is non-conforming and I go to 20 feet now I have a 20 foot building that is non-conforming.

Chairperson Cardone: But it's only non-conforming on the side…

Mr. Mattina: Right.

Chairperson Cardone: …not on the height.

Mr. Donovan: Not on the height because you didn't…

Mr. Mattina: Well the height of that non-conforming side yard. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: I think what's hard to mesh here is if you do the second story you're adding a non-conforming issue there.

Chairperson Cardone: That's right.

Mr. Hughes: If the cupola or the roofline is over the limit that's another infraction it's a different situation.

Chairperson Cardone: But it really doesn't matter whether it's there or not if it's under the 35 feet.

Mr. Donovan: If its under 35…

Mr. Mattina: You'd be creating a new height…

Mr. Hughes: It's a mute point, yes.

Mr. Mattina: Right.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. as long as everybody understands that, I don't think…

Mr. Donovan: Do we understand that or…?

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Canfield: Jerry Canfield, Code Compliance, I think what Mr. Mattina is speaking of is historically we've always spoke in terms non-conformity linear footage, O.K.? And, basically we've always spoke of a footprint of a building parallel to the property lines and if you were to extend the building footprint and let's just say, not in this case but hypothetically, we've had a house that's 20 feet long and we want to put a 10 foot addition on it we have currently 20 feet of say non-conforming linear footage, we add 10 foot addition now we have 30 feet of non-conformity and that has always been determined as increasing the degree of non-conformity. I think where Mr. Mattina is going with this and now, that the light went on in my head, I have to agree him the same applies vertical. O.K.? You have let's just say hypothetically 20 feet in height of a building that is non-conforming from the setback if you took that same linear footage horizontally and applied it vertically and now added another 10 feet for another story now instead of 20 feet of surface area vertically non-conforming you have 30 feet.

Chairperson Cardone: Correct.

Mr. Canfield: O.K.? I think that's the logic on that.

Mr. Donovan: Let me ask this question, if we have 20 foot side yard setbacks and one side of the house is only 10 feet away and the other side is 150 feet away and we put a 40 foot addition on the other side of the house so we're now 110 feet away would you rule that we've increased the degree of the non-conformity?

Mr. Canfield: Yes, because you've increased the footprint. That's how we would rule it and then perhaps come to this Board for a determination.

Mr. Hughes: Then maybe I can ask a question that will clean the whole thing up?

Mr. Donovan: Aren't you happy you are here? We are having an academic discussion on side yards.

Mr. Hughes: If it were to be explained by an opinion of the Board that the 35 feet wouldn't be a factor here and that the thing that is really to be determined and zeroed in on is the footprint extensions which are minimal if you look what was there and what they want to do and everybody balances their judgment on this variance in that frame of mind. They understand what we're looking for and the Board agrees along with the Building Department the definition in this specific incident and I think that's the only safe way to travel.


Mr. Donovan: I agree.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Canfield: I do have a further question though. Is it the intent of the applicant to utilize the foundation footprint? When you say demolition of the house is that everything, an entirely new foundation?

Mr. Esposito: Correct. We are putting a new foundation in.

Mr. Canfield: Then I have a question for counsel if I may in open session, but? If you completely demolish the house, O.K.? I would think then you take the increasing the degree of any non-conformity out of the equation because you are not increasing anything. You are completely demolishing the house and now the applicant comes before us as if it was a vacant piece of land, correct?

Mr. Hughes: But there's still infringements on the side and front and sides.  

Mr. Canfield: Well then the issue becomes what's non-conforming to your side yard setbacks and that I think in that instance then, as Dave has said, the height is a mute point as long as it doesn't exceed the 35 feet requirement.

Mr. Hughes: Right.

Mr. Canfield: It no longer becomes an issue.

Mr. Hughes: Would counsel agree that the footprint that was there and what's proposed and the infringements of extras are minimal?

Mr. Donovan: Yes. Oh, sure.

Mr. Hughes: And, then maybe the Building Department could concur that maybe we could proceed with these variances and make a brand new fit there even if it's the same footprint?

Mr. Canfield: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Canfield: I think you view it just as you had just said it's an application with nothing on it.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. that's fine.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. so your 35 feet is fine.

Mr. Esposito: Great.

Mr. Hughes: All the bells and whistles.

Mr. McKelvey: He doesn't need that then.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. He's the lawyer.

Mr. Donovan: Only when he lets me.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions or comments from the public? Anything further from the Board? 

Ms. Drake: I have a question. If you are demolishing the whole building including the foundation why can't you move the building further away from the side yard so you are not at the same degree of non-conformity? 

Mr. Hughes: Septics and wells and piping and all that, everything comes down the side if you look at the papers there in Orange Lake it shows you where all the stuff is.

Chairperson Cardone: Isn't it the front yard?

Mr. Hughes: The front yard is on the Lake and looks like to the back of this.

Mr. Esposito: Yes, front and rear.

Chairperson Cardone: Front and rear yard.

Mr. Esposito: Yes, I believe the side yard setbacks were fine.

Ms. Drake: Oh, O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, it's the front and rear.

Mr. Hughes: And the contiguous property line is also some reserved property to as well. So he doesn't have the option to go that way.

Mr. Esposito: And just one addition is, what we did with the good relationships with our neighbors is we had the ability, as you see with the plot plan, to build out to the left and we by no means wanted to infringe on anyone's views of the lake which we have a lot between my parent's house and our house. So we went to great lengths to build the house so it would not interfere with anyone's enjoyment and the view of the lake.

Mr. Hughes: Thanks for answering those questions.

Chairperson Cardone: Anything else from the Board? Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing?

Mr. Hughes: So moved

 Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

James Manley: Absent

(Time Noted – 7:25 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MARCH 27, 2008       (Resumption for decision: 9:54 PM)

J. MICHAEL ESPOSITO


38 O’DELL CIRCLE, NBGH







(51-1-16) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the front yard setback, the rear yard setback, the maximum building coverage and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the height to remove and replace with new single-family residence.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of J. Michael Esposito at 38 O’Dell Circle seeking an area variance for the front yard setback, the rear yard setback, the maximum building coverage and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the height to remove and replace with new single-family residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Hughes: I think we clarified everything that was under question pretty well on this project and it's the same thing that goes on all around Orange Lake there.

Ms. Eaton: I'll make a motion to approve. 

Mr. Maher: Second. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

James Manley: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER




DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

JAMES MANLEY - ABSENT

(Time Noted – 9:55 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MARCH 27, 2008              (Time Noted – 7:25 PM) 


JOSEPH & ADELFA GUTIERREZ

48 O’DELL CIRCLE, NBGH







(51-1-24) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the front yard setback and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yard setback to build an addition (foyer) on residence.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant this evening Joseph and Adelfa Gutierrez.

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on March 18th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on March 19th. The applicant sent out twenty-one registered letters, twenty-one were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order. 

Mr. Felter: My name is George Felter and I'm speaking for Joe and Adel. What we are proposing to do is put a small foyer in the front of their home. They are having problems going up and down their driveway in the wintertime with the ice and Joe has had a few problems with his heart and the family is concerned about the condition of them going up the driveway back and forth so we are putting a front door. We've already put the front door in and where the front door is we are putting a small foyer so they can come out the door and not have the wind blowing on them and then they go straight to their driveway.

Chairperson Cardone: That would be in the area where there is blacktop right now?

Mr. Felter: Presently there is no blacktop where we are planning to put the foyer it's going to be in the landscaping area.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Felter: The driveway is beyond that. The foyer will go right to the driveway though so they don’t have any steps. They can walk straight out to their driveway. 

Ms. Gutierrez: I'm Jamie Gutierrez. I am their daughter. The driveway is on the side of the house so my mother's front door has been on the side of the house.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Ms. Gutierrez: So, in order to get out to the cars at the top of the parking area in the winter my father, who is 85, shovels from the bottom to the top. So he has conceded this year to that maybe can't do all that shoveling that he used to do last year and so they put the door in at the top and now they would like to just build a foyer that would then go out to the parking area so that they don't have to worry about shoveling the driveway, maybe just a couple of shovels.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. thanks. Any other questions from the Board? 

Mr. Felter: And, the variance is because we're approaching the setbacks. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Felter: The house presently not conforming as it stands as all the other homes on the lake.

Mr. McKelvey: That's what I was going to say, there's a lot of properties that are close.

Mr. Felter: Yes, also if you look the neighbors have put garages right two feet from the road so actually Joe is not approaching the road like other folks have on the lake.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions or comments? Any other questions or comments from the public? Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing?

 Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion we close the Public Hearing.

 Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

James Manley: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Felter: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 7:27 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MARCH 27, 2008       (Resumption for decision: 9:55 PM)

JOSEPH & ADELFA GUTIERREZ

48 O’DELL CIRCLE, NBGH







(51-1-24) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the front yard setback and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yard setback to build an addition (foyer) on residence.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Joseph and Adelfa Gutierrez, 48 O’Dell Circle, seeking area variances for the front yard setback and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yard setback to build an addition (foyer) on residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. McKelvey: I think we heard their problems and they are not going to be really any closer to the road than a lot of those other houses.

Mr. Maher: I'll make a motion we grant it.

Mr. McKelvey: All right. I'll second it.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

James Manley: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

Mrs. Gutierrez: Thank you. 

Ms. Gutierrez: Thank you.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER




DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

JAMES MANLEY - ABSENT

(Time Noted – 9:56 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MARCH 27, 2008              (Time Noted – 7:27 PM) 


FAJILATUN HUDA


172 BROOKSIDE FARMS ROAD, NBGH






(97-1-15) IB ZONE 

Applicant is seeking a use variance for discontinuance of permitted use of 1-family residence in an IB zone to do interior alterations and repairs of house. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Fajilatun Huda.

Mr. Bloom: Good evening, ladies and gentlemen, Madam Chair, my name is Dan Bloom and I represent the applicant. As the agenda indicates this is a carryover, a continuation from the meeting that we attended and made a presentation in January of this year. And that meeting was adjourned, you'll recall, so that I would have an opportunity…the Board was kind enough to give me an opportunity to order a survey on the property to determine and demonstrate that there is room for at least one, perhaps more than one car to be parked on the premises off the street, on site parking. And to that end, I did have such a survey prepared by Darren Stridiron and I presented a copy of that to the Board and counsel. With the permission of the Board, just for the purpose of summarizing and sort of recapping what occurred at the last meeting and perhaps completing the presentation, I would like to make a few comments subject to the Board's approval. 

Chairperson Cardone: That's fine. 

Mr. Bloom: Is that O.K.?

Chairperson Cardone: Go ahead.

Mr. Bloom: The Board will recall that we presented in terms of the application for the use variance certain economic data and appraisals as prepared by Eldred Carhart, Certified Appraiser and he submitted his report. It's a part of the record. Within that report, he analyzed the permitted uses in the zone, this being an IB zone, both without special permission from the planning board with the ZBA and with. And, he concluded as a result of that analysis that there is really no use for this property unless it continues or is permitted to continue to be utilized as residential. And as the Board will recall my clients purchased this property back in 2006 and rather than just make a presentation in general in terms of history I'd like to focus on the aspects of the application that I have a burden, on behalf of my clients, to demonstrate. And, I'd like to commence that with the first factor that we have got to demonstrate under 267-B of the Town Law, which is whether under the applicable zoning regulations the applicant can realize a reasonable return on the property in question. And in that regard again I refer the Board to the report that has already been submitted by Eldred Carhart, the appraiser, in which he concluded that there really are no uses, no other uses from an appraisal perspective which could generate a reasonable, let alone reasonable, any return on the investment at all in this particular case. The second question that we have to deal with and our burden of course must be met, deals with whether the alleged hardship is unique and does not apply to a substantial portion of the remaining portion of the district. Now in response to that I'd like to reiterate that my clients purchased this property at a foreclosure sale from the Department of Housing and Urban Development and when they purchased it, it was represented to them both orally and in writing, all of their contracts demonstrate, that it is being sold as a residence. In fact, it was a requirement of the Department of Housing and Urban Development that they sign an affidavit stating they would only use it for residential property and based upon that the sale went through. Before the sale went through though they had a counsel and the counsel quite properly ordered title insurance for them and the title insurance company quite properly what we call a municipal report from the Town Building Department. And that municipal report indicated that there were no violations on the property. In addition, the Town Assessor's records classify the property as a Class "210" property, which is 1-family residence use. Now this letter was received on September 29th of 2006, my client closed less than a month later. He and she applied for a Building Permit within a week. Approximately three weeks later, they received another letter from the Building Department indicating that it could no longer be used as a residence because it had been unoccupied and lost its pre-existing non-conformity for over two years. Now, when I make that statement I don't mean and for a second to impugn the integrity or the ability or the competence of the Building Department. It's the best. All I'm emphasizing is that my clients did everything they reasonably could, in terms of due diligence, to do the right thing even including applying for a Building Permit to upgrade the property. And, so therefore they find themselves in a position where now having done everything they possibly could, they've now made the investment and they can't use it to live in. And under those circumstances I believe that they have met the burden of demonstrating that it’s a unique situation for them and in that regard I'm going to refer your counsel and the Board to the case of Jayne Estates, Inc. vs. Rayner, (22 N.Y. 2417) 22 N.Y.2d 417 a 1968 Court of Appeals case, that says that the circumstances such as these create uniqueness. I respectfully refer that to counsel, I have a copy and I will submit that with the Board's permission at the end of the presentation. The third burden is whether the requested if granted will alter the essential character of the neighborhood. Again, we respectfully suggest to this Board it will not, why, because most of the neighborhood is pre-existing non-conforming residential. Some of its mixed, a small portion of it is commercial. If you look at, and I know you have this Board visits the sites, you know when I say that this property you look at it you can't imagine it being anything but a residence. There is no room for anything commercial. There's barely enough room for residence. My client wants it. He wants to improve it. He wants to live there. The neighbors want it. They've signed a petition supporting his application and I've attached that and that's part of the record and we'll submit a copy of that as well. What I'm suggesting is that if the Board grants this application my client intends not only to live there but to spend a substantial amount of money to upgrade it to make it look good, to increase the values of all of the residential properties and there's a substantial number of them immediately in the vicinity. It's a pocket of residential in the middle of this zone, this IB zone. The next question is whether or not the hardship was self-created and again I refer the Board to the due diligence beyond what I would suggest many attorneys would have done in a case like this. They did everything they possibly could to determine if they were buying something that they could use to live in which is what they wanted to do and having done that through circumstances beyond their control, I believe through circumstances beyond everybody's control, this unfortunate development has occurred. And therefore we're coming to the Board for recourse. With respect to the inquiry that came up, at the last meeting, about the room for off street parking again I refer the Board Members to the survey which we had prepared, which I respectfully suggest more than amply demonstrates the fact that there is more than legitimate amount of off street parking for their vehicles on the property. And then finally there was concern by the Board, at the last meeting, about the history of this application. That perhaps my clients were getting two bites at the apple and I pursued that in great detail with my clients, in all fairness for my own edification, I want to make sure that any representations we make tonight are accurate. And, what my clients tell me and I believe the record will indicate is, is that when they made their first application they made it in person and they appeared at a meeting here on December 28 of 2006 and counsel at that time for the Board and the Board itself quite rightfully suggested to my client that this is not your normal area variance application, you should be represented by counsel. The Board agreed to adjourn it to the January meeting for that purpose. My clients did that, they went back to the same attorney they used at the closing. Counsel indicated to them he'd be at the meeting. Two days before the meeting, he called the clients and indicated he had a prior unexpected engagement, he couldn't make the meeting but he would send his paralegal. The paralegal came instead. I read the minutes of that meeting and unfortunately none of the issues under 267-B were addressed and therefore we're coming back at this time and we're asking for the leniency and the understanding of this Board under the circumstances for this application. Thank you very much.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Do we have any questions, comments from the Board? 

Mr. Hughes: Yes, I have some. We had asked for some information. Some of it had to do with the road and I see there was a reference to a book and a page about it.

Mr. Bloom: Yes, I have a copy of that Mr. Hughes, with me, the copy of that…

Mr. Hughes: Do you have the narrative of that? 

Mr. Bloom: Yes, I do. I have a copy of that but I can tell you there was a deed, which was referenced on that survey...

Mr. Hughes: Well, let me finish what I wanted to say.

Mr. Bloom: Oh, I'm sorry.

Mr. Hughes: Then maybe we can say some time.

Mr. Bloom: Sure, sure.

Mr. Hughes: What I'm looking for specifically is the narrative of that deed description that says that they have a clear right of way. What we were told is that there's no road in there and that there's a problem with several parcels in there and we had asked you for that information not just a book and a page reference but a copy of the narrative.

Mr. Bloom: I sent a copy of the title policy, Mr. Hughes, along with the survey which indicates that the Title Company guaranteed access to this property over the road.

Mr. Hughes: But that's not what I'm talking about. You referenced a book and a page …

Mr. Bloom: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: …for the deeded right of way. Do you have a copy of that narrative?

Mr. Bloom: I do.

Mr. Hughes: I'd like to be able to read that…

Mr. Bloom: Sure.

Mr. Hughes: …before we take this any further because I want to know that there is a road there. And, if maybe some of the other Members, I thought we had asked for more than just that if you can help me refresh my memory?

Mr. Maher: We had asked for the survey that was provided.

Mr. Hughes: You have the survey; I thought there were three things in all that we had asked for. Oh, the water and sewer, there was a question about that as well. No could seem to tell me where the water or sewer was in that, it probably is a septic system and a well. Well that just showed up on this survey. Is it a tank in the ground or what is that?

Mr. Bloom: May I approach, Mr. Hughes?

Mr. Hughes: Oh, sure please. That's the narrative of the right of way?

Mr. Bloom approached.

Mr. Bloom: This is the narrative of the (inaudible) This is the narrative of the restrictions on the right of way, the right of way and the title report provides the assurance, the guarantee... 

Mr. Donovan: Betty is going to ask that you to speak into the mic.

Ms. Gennarelli: Oh, I'm sorry. Thank you Dave.

Mr. Bloom: The document that I just handed up is a copy of the deed that creates the easement for all of the properties in question and not just creates it but precludes the parking of vehicles on it. And, the reason why I wish to call that to the attention of the Board is because there are vehicles parked on it in violation of that easement and if there is any restricted flow of traffic at the present time I suggest to the Board that the fault lies with the existing contiguous owners.

Mr. Donovan: Dan, maybe we can explore that for a second because I haven't seen what you've handed up. You did send me a copy of the Title Policy. The Title Policy has a standard provision that says that the Title Company will insure against any loss or damage in the event that there is lack of a right of access to and from the land however, there is no affirmative statement in here that they do have access nor does the legal description contain the magic words together with in common with the rights of others to access over the private road here.

Mr. Bloom: Correct.

Mr. Donovan: So, I do see that the Title Company by default is insuring access and they could in fact be on the hook if there's not access but I do not see a positive declaration of access over this private road.

Mr. Hughes: Neither do I see that here. What is sited here is a book 1578 and page 314 that has the narrative. This is not the narrative. This is a reference to the deed right of way. I am not going to be comfortable on ruling on this until I can read the narrative of the deeded right of way and I'll pass this along if anyone thinks contrary to that let me know. We asked for the narrative of the deeded right of way so that we know that there is a road in there. That is part of what we asked for at the last meeting and I thought it clearly understood.

Mr. Bloom: I quite frankly, Mr. Hughes, I was under the impression that we just wanted to be sure that we had deeded right of way into the property.

Mr. Hughes: Well, we still don't not with that piece of paper there and I'm sure you'll have to agree as an attorney that that's not sufficient evidence that does…that's not the narrative of the deeded right of way. It would tell you the minutes and seconds and the parallel lines and everything we need to know before we can rule on this.

Mr. Bloom: Well I'll be happy to pursue it further with the Board if the Board wishes that I do that. I always been proceeding on the assumption that Title Insured insured access to the right of way was sufficient but look I'll be guided by the Board. If the Board wishes that I order a forty-year abstract to trace it back I'll do that. 

Mr. Hughes: No, we just want narrative to the right away. 

Mr. Donovan: Well, let me ask it Dan?

Mr. Bloom: If I may Mr. Donovan? I also have to ask myself now speaking just in theory at this point, we have all of these other buildings in there that have been there for how many years all using this right away including Crowley's, including all the other places. Is the suggestion here that all of those other buildings and businesses and residences have the right to use this right away but this house doesn't?

Mr. Hughes: Oh, I don't know.

Mr. Bloom: I'm just trying to follow the logic. 

Mr. Donovan: Sure. When I look back over the minutes from two months ago I saw in there a reference to an opinion of Title relative to the ability of this lot to cross over the private road to get to the public portion of Brookside Farm Road and I think that's what I asked for and at least that's what the minutes say I asked. 

Mr. Bloom: That's correct.

Mr. Donovan: But I think…

Mr. Bloom: And I contacted, Mr. Donovan sorry to interrupt you.

Mr. Donovan: Dan, you have permission to interrupt me any time.

Mr. Bloom: Thank you. I contacted Horizon Title Services for that purpose and they indicated to me that I should go back to the Title Company that provided the insurance at the time. Unfortunately, I've not been able to get through to that Title Company because as you can tell its not a local Title Company.

Mr. Donovan: Correct. I see that.

Mr. Bloom: And, the title insurance was secured because it was a foreclosure sale and so I'm not dealing with a normal situation. However, I am perfectly happy if this Board is willing to give a thirty-day adjournment to go and get a whole new title policy done for that limited purpose, if necessary.

Mr. Donovan: Well, certainly if you went to Horizon and Bob McEachern wrote a letter that said his company would insure the right over that private road that's fine for me. I don't know if you need to do a forty-year abstract.

Mr. Bloom: I want to be clear as to exactly right what it is that you would accept at this point. 


Mr. Hughes: That book and page that sites the parameters of the right of way would be sufficient. I don't think you have to go for that abstract or any of the other stuff. 

Mr. Donovan: Relative to this issue my preference would be a letter from a Title Company. I don't need the forty-year abstract but a letter, if Bob McEachern from Horizon writes a letter and says 'I would insure access over this or this parcel, tax parcel 97-1-15 has the right in common with others over that portion of Brookside Farm Road as far as I'm concerned that's sufficient. And I would advise this Board that that's sufficient.

Mr. Bloom: So, a letter from a company such as Horizon to that effect would be sufficient.

Mr. Donovan: Yes.

Mr. Bloom: I would be happy to do that.

Chairperson Cardone: I would agree with that. I don't know how the other members feel.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes, I would agree with that.

Mr. Bloom: Now if the Board would be kind enough to give me thirty days to do that. I'll be happy to do that. Yes.

Mr. Donovan: Now do we want to revisit the other issue that seem to be…loom large time was the issue of whether or not this is a self-created hardship? Is the Board satisfied heard enough on that or do they want to hear more on that issue?

Mr. Hughes: Well I'm not sure that that's cleared up completely nor is the proof of not being able to do something else. A sale is certainly an option for other things that can go on and I'm not thoroughly convinced at this point so maybe it would be better.

Mr. Donovan: Well I know Mr. Bloom has made his…is there any other specific information the Board may want to hear relative to that issue, I know…

Mr. Hughes: I haven't been satisfied with the question on the septic and the well. It shows something out here that isn't on the property that indicates it’s the septic system. How can you have a septic system for a place on another parcel? And that's partly why I want to know where this road is supposed be. If your client has a tank in the ground that's under a road what does the Town do with that? Do they wait till it fills up and have it pumped out? I don't know what that is if you look on that.

Mr. Bloom: I would suppose the answer, Mr. Hughes, would be that my client could move the septic. 

Mr. Hughes: Well then it becomes an issue of where are you going to put it?

Mr. Bloom: Well that would be something we would have to deal with the Planning Board and the Building Department and then come back to this Board if it becomes necessary. Sure.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Well I don't know how this flows at this point with SEQRA and everything else but let's just say hypothetically we said to you tonight…O.K. we're going to wait on that description of the road and we don't know what that thing is underground and we approve that and you go to the Planning Board and say O.K. we have…to the Building Department rather, and say we have to put another septic system in now and there is physically no room to do it, we've almost given you the nod to go ahead and consider an investment and you're pouring more money in this place and then you find out you can't do it. That's my biggest concern about that road description to see if there really is such a thing there and my question is the same as yours. You've got six or seven entities up there and they're coming in and out of there. I don't know if anybody has the right. 

Mr. Bloom: Well…

Chairperson Cardone: I think, Mr. Canfield, do you have a comment on that? Have you seen where the septic system is?

Mr. Canfield: No. I haven’t seen it. 

(Mr. Canfield approached and Mr. Hughes showed him the survey)

Mr. Canfield: Jerry Canfield, the only thing I can respond to that with is…we don't have a failing system at this time. It's a very difficult question to answer. Hypothetically…what it? If and when the time comes, as we all know septic systems fail, tanks fail, there is minimal property in the rear of the residence. I don't know the topographics by looking at that. I can't tell. However there are alternative measures that may be available, alternative systems, seepage pits, something like that. Something other than a conventional tank and leech fields, as we know it. It's purely a hypothetical question. Real simple though, if an applicant came to us and said they wanted to put a system in, in this area, we would have to have an engineered designed system. It would be up to the applicant, then to go hire a professional engineer to come back with a new system. And then there's alternatives we still have Orange County Board of Health that they can apply to for less restrictive systems in confined areas such as this. So it's an open ended question that I really can't give you an answer to what if the system fails. The only advice I can give you is if the system failed for the lot this small the applicant would definitely go back to the Building Department with a engineered stamped set of drawings for a workable system.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Canfield: I don't know if that answers your question…

Chairperson Cardone: That's fine.

Mr. Canfield: …but that's the best I can offer.  

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Do you have anything further?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? 

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to hold this hearing?

Ms. Drake: I'll make a motion to hold the Public Hearing open for another thirty days.

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Mr. Bloom: Thank you. Madam Chair, may I present…

Chairperson Cardone: Could we just have a vote on that first?

Mr. Bloom: Oh, I'm sorry.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

James Manley: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: Go ahead.

Mr. Bloom: Thank you Madam Chair. May I present to the Board a copy the presentation, along with the exhibits that I referred to, from the microphone, for the Board's records? 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Bloom: Thank you very much.

Mr. Donovan: Dan, do you have an extra copy of that?

Mr. Bloom: I do, but without the exhibits. But, I'll provide you the exhibits tomorrow.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. Thank you.
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Applicant is seeking area variances for the amount of total square footage allowed for signage and the limitation of the number of pylon and freestanding signs. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant WB Interchange Associates, LLC. I'm going to reverse the order. We are first going to consider the area variances for the amount of total square footage allowed for signage and the limitation of the number of pylon and freestanding signs. If you'll recall at the last meeting we had discussed having an outside consultant concerning the sign issue and we have that consultant here with us this evening and if you would permit we would start with his presentation?

Mr. Bainlardi: O.K. While he is setting up, I'm John Bainlardi for the applicant; I'm the Development Manager for the project. 

Chairperson Cardone: Is that microphone on?

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes. At the last meeting, it was requested that we provide some additional information to the Board, which we've provided. One was a calculation of the…what we were referring to as the roadway signage which is the freestanding including the pylons, monument signs and other freestanding signs and we had a total square footage calculation of 1,250 sq ft which gave us a surplus of 2054 sq ft which is not currently being proposed for use. Additionally it was requested to provide some information about how the freestanding signs would be illuminated and we responded by indicating that the monument and the directional signage would be illuminated from within the planting bed utilizing metal halite fixtures 100-watt maximum. Additionally there was a question about proposed signage on the Costco Fueling Station on the canopy, I have some drawings here which I can pass out to each of the Members of the Board which show the proposal on the canopy a total of 85 sq ft of total signage and we had actually accounted for that square footage in the requested signage calculation for Costco. So we would not be requiring any increase in the already requested of signage.

Mr. McKelvey: Well that was just the fact you didn't show it.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you. 

Mr. Bainlardi: I believe with respect to signage that was all the additional information that was requested.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. O.K. Is that mic on? And then if you would just identify yourself for the record.

Mr. Berger: Sure. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. you may begin.

Mr. Berger: Thank you. Hello, my name is Craig Berger, Director of Education and Professional Development and Sign Consultant for the Society for Environmental Graphic Design. We are based out of Washington, D.C. but actually I live in South Jersey so I didn't have to drive that far to get up here today. And I'd like to thank the Zoning Board for getting me involved in this particular project overall. I was asked to come in after it appeared that the area of doing a main street project or a town center or there's about fifty different names for these type projects but it appeared that there were specific signage issues that were beyond the ability of a single zoning code or even a simple zoning variance to really satisfy. So I was asked to come in and really do a little bit of an analysis about the nature of town centers and do an analysis of a few different town centers and also do an analysis of this project as far as the information that I received. I believe that the information that I received was about two weeks ago, as of two weeks ago so whatever has been updated since then, it basically was of two weeks ago. Since I didn't have enough time to really do a full report I was just…got involved in this three or four weeks ago I thought what would be an important thing to do would be to do an overall presentation of all the different issues related to a series of town centers and then be able to apply it to this particular project. Obviously this is a fairly complex project. Whatever variance is going to be given to this project will be for a number of different types of sign types not just a singular sign and that's a pretty important issue to really think about when doing this. I'm going to open up a little presentation if you can wait one second. All right. Thank you. Thank you for waiting some time for this. (Mr. Berger started the visual presentation) O.K. Can everybody see this O.K.? Great. One thing we are going to look at, we're going to look at a couple of different models because there is no one model for a main street development and I think this is one area where everybody on the Zoning Board and everybody in this group probably has some experience because a lot of these things are cropping up usually by the day. In fact, in the Town I live of Voorhees they are building two and one is including the demolition of an existing shopping mall and the replacement with a main street center. So this is a very common to the model and usually…its really three parts…usually you have a combination of big box and retailers, small sections of retail shops and restaurant/entertainment. And of course this can go in any number of combinations but usually that's been the most workable models recently. You very rarely see these projects anymore with just specialty shops for example there's usually a combination of big box stores and small retailers. There's really no one model. And really the best projects create new town centers or town center extensions that is they extend the existing roadway system into a town, really supporting an existing town. Those are really the best type of examples that we see. And, most projects are just visual improvements of existing models meaning that, we'll have to be honest here, most of the retail projects you'll probably end up seeing is of this nature that are called main streets or developments are really just pretty much normal retail with a few improvements in a few different areas one or two additional improvements. And I think one of your jobs in terms of selecting a variance is really seeing what are the areas that are going to be improvements for enhancements to the Town and what are the areas that you believe are more superfluous extensions. Because usually a variance given in these cases is generally in an area or two areas. One, and I really shouldn't go into this you guys probably know more about this than I do, but an area of hardship number one but also in the area where it doesn't fall under an existing model but creates an amenity that you think supports or extends onto a surface. And I think we'll be talking about those two different areas overall. So really the goal of main street signage is to improve the physical limits of the project from outside the complex, create a consistent identity and manage clutter. Now the big issues is we're going to have to address mainly zoning issues today but we have to be frank here. Aesthetic issues and zoning issues are connected. Whatever the Planning Board decisions have to be made has to be linked to Zoning Board decisions especially when it comes to signage in this area because a lot of the issues that you'll be asking for is basically an improvement on an existing model and basically giving a variance on the zoning side because of the nature of these improvements. So really there is a real strong link and I'm going to talk about that but I'm going to try and keep that to a minimum as much as possible because of the nature of this meeting. That's something you are going to have to take up with your Planning Board of course and I'm sure they are already talking about it and working with it right now. And also the other issue is that some signage elements should be encouraged over others. We're going to talk about that but obviously that's up to the developer not up to me to tell the developer what to do when it comes to that. In the end, I'll just mention overall my organization is not pro-developer and not anti-developer. We are what I would call pro-quality of design that's where we really got our self started in and one area that we were brought into a number of cities and towns was it was becoming a very difficult issues where there were two groups; one group was basically trying to get signage as big as possible, another group is trying to remove signage completely from the public sphere and we decided that maybe it was the best to really talk about this from a holistic point of view to give better guidance. O.K. so here are the things that should be encouraged that are fairly large scale and this could mean a lot of things, gateways, you know most of these main street centers have to have very strong and attractive gateway stores to attract people. Now what do we mean by attractive, I mean that could mean a lot of different things to a lot of different people and I think that's where you really need to get your planning group in. Directional signs, it's important that directional signs can be visible. We're going to talk about that in a little more detail but the reality is one of the biggest drawbacks of a lot of these complexes is because of the existing zoning rules almost all the money and almost all the dollars are placed into the actual retail signage and not into the directional signage. If directional signage is too small to read it's not good for anybody. If it's not attractive and I'll show examples what can happen and this is something that has to be strongly encouraged. The other thing streetscape enhancers, awnings, seasonal banners, all of these things even if they include a signage component are areas that add to the existing life of the facility. Public art and we'll see how that links to signage a little bit as well and signs integrated with architectural identity. That is if a sign is integral to an architecture a little bit more variance should be given over a sign that's just placed on a wall and of course the developer has done some examples of that which we'll talk about. Signs should be moderated but it should not be too small to read. You know big box entrance signs; the reality is it doesn't look good for anybody if the sign doesn't fit the scale, at all. And then of course there are signs that should be reduced or eliminated and that really is, and this is probably going to be one of your bigger issues to discuss out of all the issues after doing analysis of existing plans is that really if a sign is not linked to a store entrance or linked to the architecture of the building that is a retail sign. It probably should be reduced or eliminated. That is signs that proliferate on the back of buildings, signs that proliferate towards the roadway but are not related to an entrance of a structure and we'll talk about that in a little more detail. But those are really the most important signs to look for. The reality is these complexes are meant to be on one hand an extension of the street to the community but on the other hand they're supposed somewhat self-enclosed. So really what you want to do is encourage the things that create a better holistic picture of the facility and you want to reduce the things that do no, so, just a few things. Here's an example of the monument sign that does a good job. It's designed, the other thing it does, it doesn't have too many store signs. One of the biggest mistakes that you can make is by allowing a monument sign. This why in the end it becomes a real anti-monument sign bias. Monument signs are important. They have to be relatively large depending on the size of the complex. You can't shrink them down to be too small to read either because they would be dangerous. On the other hand, if you add too many retail store information to it, it is not good for legibility, it becomes dangerous because you're trying read too much information and also it's ugly and not attractive. It doesn't enhance your streetscape. And, the monument sign, let's face it, is one of the most important streetscape enhancements that you are going to have on this project. It's going to be one of those visible pieces. Here is another one. I was in Florida the other week and right next store to where my grandparents lived they had probably one of the finest main street centers I've seen. So I've seen it and seeing when a gateway was mostly a piece of architecture and very little in the way of written information, sign information. And obviously these things can be allowed under existing codes much more easily. They're designed to be placed under existing code because the codes usually don't include architecture. The planning boards are the ones that approve them and then the signage portion is relatively small again under the zoning piece. But anything that creates a better holistic picture of the facility should be encouraged. This is what I would consider a typical type of sign that you would see and this is something that I'm a little ambivalent of in one direction or another, it becomes a zoning issue. Even though the sign is well-done, attractive, stereo lighting, all that element, it probably has too many pieces of information on it to be read visibly from the street. Now remember this is a shopping center with a large number of stores. Not all that information could be put on that sign and if it is it will not be attractive and will not be good. That is an element that you really have to focus on the holistic elements and really get a better picture that its not just going to be a billboard for all the different information. That's the important thing to keep in mind. Directional signs, you can see they have to be relatively large for legibility reasons. Generally they have to have a type size of at least three inches in height, probably larger, three or four inches but they must be limited to about five destinations even at slow speed and they should be of the same high quality as other signs. This is where the biggest problem happens where groups try to get under the zoning code, that is they invest all their money in large-scale store signs and then shrink down the size of the existing signs to the extent. If you want to do anything, these particular signs are the ones that if they are attractive and they enhance the community they should be encouraged not discouraged. You know, that's a good example of a typical retail or a community project sign. This is generally in main streets and commercial projects the area where things are done the worst. This is really the area where you have to watch for very unattractive because these are the elements that are going to connect the fabric of the outside community with the inside community. And then that's streetscape and pedestrian enhancements, they should also be of high quality, have an impact on the environment. And then of course a lot of main street projects and I'm sorry if we're going into things that might be a little beyond this particular project but I think that it's important to give you an overall picture, things like public art also become things that become strongly encouraged and really, let's be honest what happens a lot is a lot of the main street projects try not to tinker too much with the existing sign codes in their community. They tend to try to use architecture, public art, and non-overt signage elements to get around these things. But they also tend to, in my experience, go too lightly on issues relating to identity and way-finding because they all tend to get lumped under signage. There are a number of facilities that are, to get out from under zoning codes…for sign codes, they will make a sign into public art. This is a main street at Exton, the Wal-Mart and the Sam's Club, they're only allowed a very small sign under the code but they were allowed to appropriate both the mural program and yes the Sam's Club is mural. I know it might be considered cheating a little bit to get out from under the zoning code that way but by creating amenities like public art or calling it public art and integrating identity into the public art that tends to be another area where you see work happening. So I'm going to look at a couple of different complexes. Some are, I would say, below the quality of the Marketplace. Some are pretty much at the level of the Marketplace and then some are above the level of the Marketplace. I think I wanted to give a diversity of issues. Now I don't, seeing this is a Zoning Board meeting, I don't want this presentation and I'll just tell you right now I don't want this presentation to make like I am endorsing one style of project over another. I know that that tends to happen when we look at some of these things, I just to give some ideas of what different sign approaches. This is an approach that I want to show you that's the wrong way to do something from where literally they tried to operate from the…where no particular zoning variance was sought and all the signs were placed using the existing sign code. This is a really problematic complex. It's called Garden State Pavilions in New Jersey. This is a project that needed extensive way finding to make it work. Because they tried not to go under the existing zoning codes they used way-finding signs that were very small. The standard size being, I think, about three-foot square and this is what you can get when you do three foot square. It's very hazardous legibility wise. And then, the stores themselves, you could see, by minimizing the size per store it doesn't really get you anything in this particular case in terms of overall quality. And this is…I just wanted to bring this picture it might not have anything to do with it, this is actually considered a transit shopping center. This is where the transit station is behind the parking lot of the shopping center. I don't know why I had to put that editorial comment in it just enraged me. This is a project that I felt is very close to the Marketplace, extremely close in terms of quality of finished, quality of the same type mix of stores. I mean the shape of the project is different and the way the roadway works is significantly different but I think from a signage point of view is a, you know, is good. I mean this is a pretty well done complex but just a few things is, this is overall some things we don't like to see a lot of. This is what I mean by a sign, which has too much information on it. Which too much square footage is given over to too many different types of signs. As you can tell there are a few blank spots in there as well but the fact of the matter is if you…you can't use the monument sign as a billboard and this is something you have to be careful of. You can put some big box stores on there. You can put some of the major information on there but remember back to the other sign overall the minute you add say more than, maybe I'm just thinking depending on how its designed, I don't like to break that down but maybe like four more pieces of information. So it's really not a matter of the size of the actual object, you know, this pedestal or this monument. It's really the size of the signage element and what kind of signage element that works correctly. I mean really the bad thing you can see about this, this is also bad, is the Marketplace at Garden State Park is small which is…this is the identity that should be large in size. This is the identity that defines the complex at the edge and then this information is the most visible and there's too much of it. That's the kind of area that we have to try to think about trying to avoid. You see here are some of the things that happen well. This is inside of existing zoning code; you can see that this signage works well. This is the small store way-finding signage and definitely what the way that the code was designed is really to allow for the main street signs as much creativity as possible, to allow for awnings even though they might have, not in this case, but they might have store names on the awnings to allow for that information but anything that involves an amenity like that should be encouraged on the small space of stores. And then you have the big store signs and this is appropriate. I think most people would admit that this combination of small store and big store we could be honest and say that that's an appropriate scale sign. And then this is what I mean by architectural integration. I mean, I don't know what your stylistic attitude is towards these type of signs but I actually believe that that using that this is the type of architectural integration that should be included. Yes, this is a sign; the big blue element is a sign in its own right because you can see this and this tells you its Best Buy more than anything else. This also works well even though this is a big store by putting the signs and focusing the signs over the entrances it breaks down the size and scale and that's a really important thing that you want to do with these type of complexes is. You don't want these to feel like these big blank wall boxes with just things slapped on there where only one side is fronted so this type of approach and attitude is pretty good. This I'm not as happy about as a whole and I think this has to be       talked about by the group because one of the things that you're going to be having to say overall is you want to encourage the signage that more enhances that streetscape and the enhancement of the area but what was done on this was signage was brought around the sides and the back basically large scale signs where just put around the different roadway areas overall. They don't particularly make the environment much worse but they're not something that really enhances the overall quality of the complex and focuses the complex internally. Really things that are placed on the outer edge should be more based either way finding or more based around the community, you know the overall identity of the complex and we'll see another project that does that a little more. This is Main Street at Exton. This is maybe about the same level or slightly above, it's in the same range we'll say, you know, and really what Main Street Exton did was they public art, they used a lot of enhancements to get around a lot of the zoning codes. Like for example, this was considered a public art piece, to get out from under calling it a sign. You know, using painted elements, using the names of the store names as part of integrating it to a public art piece overall. One of the most important things about this and I didn't have enough time to bring the actual book, but to get the zoning variance on this project they brought in the specific guidelines and this is the guidelines are going to govern how the tenants are going to operate going into the future. I think that's one thing you are going to have to get, when you do the variance overall, is not a book but just a short set of instructions where the short set of instructions are going to say this is what…these are the guidelines that the tenants are going to be guided on. And I think they've probably…the developer already probably has that information. This is what they are going to be telling them. Because when you grant the variance you're going to be granting that variance and saying these are what we're telling the tenants so in the future the tenants know that for the basis of getting this and if you break this that you have the right to go out and break their legs or whatever you do when you break the variance rules. So, you can see a fairly heavy emphasis on identity, you know generally I guess these complexes look remarkably similar, they all tend to have a similar vocabulary. And then, the big box store signs focus on entrance frontages and integrated into architecture as much as possible. And then you've seen that. And just because I was in Florida I'll show you this one. I know it probably doesn't look anything like what you'll see in New York but I thought it would look pretty good to show overall. And just some of the things you are going to see overall is everything is focused on the frontages. The buildings are not…the big different between a main street project and a big box power center project is the building is not considered a freestanding box. The building is considered to be part of integrated into the complex. That means really we would encourage signage to be integrated into entrances not just to be used as a billboard overall and I think when we do any analysis of this project and we'll see where that's been done well areas where maybe need some improvement but basically overall that's the goal. This is another particular one, you can see the architectural integration, public art and then finally, I hope I'm not running too much on time here, I decided to try to do this relatively quickly. So what I would say for an analysis for zoning and a variance criteria we included four different areas, one would be vehicular legibility. One of the big things in granting a variance is safety, public safety issues you don’t want way finding or identity elements that are facing the street, not inside the complex as much but facing the street to be too small and things in the public right of way. You don't want people to have to squint to read signs. Frankly, this is something that one of our sister organizations the United States Sign Council they're in the business of making sure we get bigger and bigger commercial signs but based on legibility criteria. I don't think I'm saying that. What I am saying is things that are like the public identity out on the street, things that mark the entranceway, the things, the way finding elements that take you into the street and commercial thoroughfares that you have to provide at more than 15 M.P.H. need to be large enough to be read. The other one that the criteria you want to make sure is complex integrity. You know you want to make sure that you encourage in your variance anything that solidifies the complex, an individual complex and you want to strongly discourage things that make the individual stores more dominant than the individual complex. I think that's a really important thing to make sure you think about when you're developing a variance. The third thing is maintaining consistency over time. The developer is going to have to show you and you know I haven't been to these meetings except for tonight of course so, I don't know, they are going to have to show you that this is the same thing that they are telling you, they're telling the…not so much the smaller commercial tenants, I mean they have to follow very tight guidelines just because of the architecture…but the big box tenants who have more control over their own building, they have to be strongly told that these are the guidelines that have to be followed. And then the other is minimizing clutter. By clutter we just don't mean the number of elements but we're talking about the placement of elements in places where they should not go, backs of buildings, places within the loading docks. It has to make sense to the overall integrity of the complex. And then the signs to focus on, four again, identity, way finding, main street store signs, smaller stores on the streetscape and big box store signs. Each of those four things have to be looked at specifically and separately. One should not melt into the other, you know, if you give square footage to one, it shouldn't be that oh, I have few extra square feet I'm going to drop it another. These are four pretty different things. If you are giving a quality for one it really doesn't mix and match with the other. So, and by the way, this is just a preliminary thing because I want to solicit some questions again overall. This is the Marketplace in Newburgh and this is my initial analysis overall. They did a very good job with the vehicular way finding stuff. I think that probably would be agreed on by most of us here by looking at this. I don't know enough about what the actual typography is. If this is going to be the actual typography or not but it's big enough that's about as much as I could put in. The quality of this object is good and this element is small which is very rare. In most cases they make this identity element monstrous and this is the information that's important at a vehicular speed to talk about. This is the dominant information once you get inside the complex overall. So this is good and then the fact that they are using a pedestrian element behind because you can only see the sign on one side, the driver's side can only see it. The other side is just for pedestrian information so this is a good element. This element is a little more problematic that in some ways is that this is a situation we get in lot with these type of projects is somebody asks me, 'I want the sign to be a certain square footage to fit the zoning variance so is the sign too big or too small?'  The reality is the sign may be too small but or it's definitely not too big in an overall size for the complex but there's really too much information. I mean I'm not sure how much information there is going to be but there is a little too much information on here and this part as I mentioned is a little small. I mean, if these are considered, this is considered supposed to be the main identity of the project. The main identity should be the more dominant element and then there maybe should be three or four elements. That's about as much as you can do and have it be well designed. I think we can see enough examples to show once you get above four elements it starts dropping off considerably in quality as well as ability to maintain it. The reality is the Marketplace stores; the stores that are in the Marketplace area probably shouldn't be on this big one because obviously you are not going to put all the stores on the sign no matter how hard you try. It has to be limited to a certain extent. So this element probably would have to be the more dominant element and you really have to reduce the amount of clutter. This is where clutter starts becoming an issue and that has to be reduced overall. In terms of the overall object this is an issue where you can't zone your way to quality. That becomes a planning issue. This is where I start seeing where zoning issues start melding into planning issues. The fact of the matter is there's ninety percent of these signs are done poorly and they are done poorly because there is too much information on it. If the element is good like the one at Pembroke Pines we saw where the one in Exton, the Main Street at Exton it's going to be an overall enhancement no matter how big it is or how much the overall size is. It could be a small poor sign just as easily as a quality big sign. The main street itself, obviously I have to do a little more analysis but the overall what I've seen and put down is overall consistent with most of the other main street complexes we've seen. I don't think there is any thing particularly about it signage wise that I from the drawings that I see overall but the guidelines are going to have to be really what establishes how you give a variance to this particular area. You don't want to get into a situation where this is what appeared like at first but then signage stays at this scale as they subdivide down. So there has to be a formula that has to be given over to be able to establish that as the scale of the store drops the scale of the signage drops overall. I mean this is where truth will be in the guidelines but what I see visually obviously is pretty consistent with what you'll see visually with most other complexes overall. So really this is where the specific guidelines are really going to define what gives it…what ends up being the size. But the other thing to think about is this is a different element than a big box stores. This has to be treated as a different thing. I mean, first of all for the most part the stores don't have their own architectural integrity. This is following the architectural integrity of the complex not the individual store. If Green Music Store moves out something moves in this is still going to be the same it's just changing this specific element on this. So this has to be treated differently. And then, the big stores overall I think that looking at what's been done so far is I think that what's been done on the front of the buildings, the front facades of the buildings are fairly consistent. I mean, these are fairly large stores, big box stores, these are not typical main street big box stores. These would be on the larger side of a big box store for a main street. And really your main goal is to try and break down the scale of these to the level of the community. They shouldn't look like they're stand alone stores completely divorced from this community and what I see that strong was you want to see the signage focused on the entranceways and you want to see an integration of the architecture of the entranceways and put in the entranceways area. Where I think it becomes problematic is when you start moving the signage well off of the complex itself into the loading dock areas and areas that are not related to the complex to the front of the complex. Then it starts defining this as it's own big box store and it becomes a particular issue. This is something generally as a recommendation; you generally want to see these things integrated more with the entrance structure. You don't want to see this kind of as an adorned box. You want to see it as a façade that connects with the façades of the rest of the facility and that's got to be what's encouraged. This is done really well as you can see just like what we saw at the store in Cherry Hill, New Jersey. It's very consistent, very similar overall architectural integration but I think this is where you have to watch specific issues is where they just put a large scale sign in this particular direction. I think you want to really encourage the work inside the front entrance areas and just be careful of just adorning the facades. But as I said this is an issue that has a lot to do with the actual complex, with the shape and structure of the complex. The developer wants to, my assumption; most developers who do main street complexes want to make sure that it's cohesive. That after they're done, after they hand this over and the stores move in, it's got to still look relatively cohesive to be successful overall. And what happens is when stores look like this, when these complexes lose their cohesiveness is when they go really downhill very quickly and then they get…all the stores move out, go to the next big main street which usually starts in the next couple of years. So, the reality is, from the standpoint of a community is, you want to encourage a developer to do things that support the overall complex, the inner complex area itself and you want to discourage things that makes these objects start separating themselves out overall.  So, these are pretty…variances should be split out. This variance should be split out by the different areas and they should not melt…blend one into the other. You know, as I said, because I got 3000 sq.ft. for way finding, I shouldn't drop 1500 sq.ft. off of that and then move it over to the next element. This is pretty…I'm sure you guys already know this already. Way finding, that if you are doing a way finding variance you just have to relatively specific about the information, just like with identity. You want to make sure you encourage signs that meet certain Code requirements but then discourage things that don't. Small store identity, diversity of signs should be allowed and a variance should be given for a specific square footage and if they are going to expand, of course, they'll have to go back anyway. And then big box store identity, large-scale signs should be encouraged at main entrances and on the main façade are architectural integrated. Large signs should be kept off the side of that side unless integrated into the complex. I'm not saying that signs on the side of the building are bad. I'm just saying that they have to make the case that they are going to integrated into an entrance structure that it's not going to be side to be seen from the highway. That's not really appropriate. What's appropriate on a highway is the way finding and the overall complex identity. That's really the goal of this, you know, you want the identity…the overall identity to be strong from the outside because if you don't these projects very quickly develop into a series of individual boxes and structures and believe me you don't want to see that happen. I think everybody here knows what happens. Overall though, I think they...I'm not going to give too much of an editorial comment. I think they did a pretty good job on a lot of different areas. I think obviously the big box side of it is an area for really the biggest area where you should be focusing a lot of your attention on. I think that the elements related to way finding and over identity seem to be definitely on the right track with what needs to be done. Maybe not perfect but believe me a lot better than I've seen so I think that overall those are the specific issues that I did in this overall analysis. Going back to this, I didn't get into to much overall detail. I really had a relatively short amount of time to put this together so I'll make sure that after our discussion today, whatever issues come up today we can…I can go back and be able to integrate more information based on some of the responses we get here. Thanks.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. First we have comments from the Board or questions.

Mr. Berger: Hope I didn't leave you speechless. 

Chairperson Cardone: No.

Mr. Berger: I didn't think that would happen.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the applicant as far as this presentation? Any response to it?

Mr. Silverman: I'm Saul Silverman I am the architect for the center. I appeared before the Board last time and gave an explanation and introduction. I believe that Craig's analysis or in his review obviously he's a shopping center person and has seen a lot of centers (inaudible). I'm not sure though that there are a couple of points that you did raise. I'm not sure you really understood what was on the drawings maybe because of the limited amount of time.

Mr. Berger: Right.

Mr. Silverman: O.K.? And, I think I would love the opportunity to be able to spend a few minutes with him because I think some of the valuations maybe a little different. And we've got some crucial areas that relate to this specific site as Craig said; every site is a little bit different. For instance, the relationship to the big boxes were not to integrate the big boxes necessarily into the Village Square and the architecture is substantially different but if you review the three big boxes that we have to date there was a specific requirement aesthetically and architecturally by the Planning Board and the ARB to integrate the big boxes and come up with a format so they weren't all uniquely different. So I think in many respects you have to look at the three different drawings of JC Penney and Costco and Best Buy because that is a separate section. For instance the Costco Building is a separate building. It's not attached.

Mr. Berger: Well I think, just to mention, I think actually…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me. We have two mics…

Chairperson Cardone: We have two mics.

Ms. Gennarelli: …it's going into a recorder, so…

Mr. Berger: I'm sorry.

Ms. Gennarelli: That's O.K. If you could just grab that other one…  

Mr. Berger: Well actually I'm not in disagreement with you at all about the façade analysis of the front and side. I didn't have any problems at all with the…particularly with the front side that faces the JC Penney's building and the Best Buy building and that they were integrated into the overall complex. It's just the issue I had was around the sides and the back and that was the only issue I raise up. The front façade I think you may have an issue with.

Mr. Silverman: Well, what we did on that was we limited these tenants severely to the quantity and the placement of signs, all right and the relationship to where the signs were placed, for instance, with Costco so that it was part of their two major facades and they've bent to us to the request we had and the sizing of signs and the illumination type of it. All right? And we felt that we're coming up with this series of buildings that are completely integrated as far as color, texture, building materials, architectural styles and then the signage. Now of course, a JC Penney has a style of letter and they are going to get their style of letter. A Costco has its style of letter and they are going to get their style because that is their corporate logo.

Mr. Berger: But that's actually not the issue, I mean, I don’t have any problem actually with the analysis, but the issue is not with that JC Penney won't get their own logo and that these stores won't get their own logo. In fact most of…

Mr. Silverman: Yes, I know that. I mean, good. 

Mr. Berger: The issue, the only issue that I raised up was the front façades were fine. I mean they were integrated into the facilities pretty well. The only issue I bringing up signage wise is on the side façades and really not the JC Penney's so much did not have this particular issue but just with mainly with the Costco and the Best Buy store is when they start bringing the signage around close to the rear of the building where it's really mostly being used and I could be wrong, I didn't do a full analysis, I have to really look at where how it works from the roadway if its not connected with the overall identity of the complex but then starts becoming more of a sign in its own right for the building itself. That was really the only issue I brought up. But with the front façades I didn't have a problem with the size, the architectural integration or the fact that the of those stores was unique. I did understand that that…

Mr. Silverman: Yeah, and I'm sure you did and a matter of fact, for instance, on the Best Buy building where you have that one side sign that faces out towards 84, Route 84, we tried to do exactly what you had suggested or said…is create it as a mural, rather than put a sign up on the wall. All right? So, we went to the same color backgrounds that we used on the forward signs and made it into a separate mural that we integrated into the architecture and what we tried to do also on the small stores and again I'm sure you just didn't have or the time to do this, all right, we have a table on all of the small stores where the sizes of the signs are limited...

Mr. Hughes: Gentlemen, if I could interrupt here?

Mr. Silverman: Of course, fine.

Mr. Hughes: Your conversation may get to the point and involvement here that we need to tweak that  (inaudible) but I think that what the Board and public and everybody is more concerned with…we had charged you with responding to us a ratio proportion or a percentage or whatever you'd like to call it of what you felt was appropriate and one of our Members asked for a consultant so that everybody, the public and our Board could be in tune. Some of us are experienced in signs and layouts and design centers. Some of us aren't. I think your conversation could evolve later on but not to burn up the time here for the public or the Board…

Mr. Berger: Sure, of course.

Mr. Hughes: I would refer to the questions that we had and why this gentleman was brought in and if you could tell us what you've apportioned in either ratios or percentages or how you are going to do this together then we can speak with him later and iron all that other…

Mr. Silverman: All right.

Mr. Hughes: …fine tune detail out.

Mr. Silverman: On each of the drawings for the big boxes you got a table that says exactly how much square footage we'd asked for overall.

Mr. Hughes: For the public.

Mr. Silverman: And then on the drawing, right for the public and then on the drawing it tells you exactly the size of that sign on each and every façade. On the drawings that are done for the Village Center itself there are separate categories that give you the sizes of stores from 20 feet up to 40 feet, from 40 feet to 50 feet, from 50 feet to … and it give you the square footages just… 

Mr. Hughes: Do you have something you can put on a board for the public? 

Mr. Silverman: Absolutely.

Mr. Hughes: That's what we're looking for.

Chairperson Cardone: I think Mrs. Drake had a number of questions concerning the size of the different signs. Do you feel that those questions have been answered, Mrs. Drake?

Ms. Drake: They did the breakdown of signs for the roadways and they had said they needed 3000 sq.ft. for the road and the breakdown they provided showed they only are only using 1000 sq.ft.

Mr. Maher: 1250.

Ms. Drake: 1250, yes, so there is actually 2054 sq.ft. that they asked for that they didn't actually have allocated and I didn't know if the applicant would consider reducing the variance by that 2054 sq.ft. for the overall variance thereby reducing the percentage of the variance.  

Mr. Bainlardi: We would be willing to do that.   

Mr. Wolinsky: Larry Wolinsky, I just wanted to say subject to the advise from your consultant because part of what I got from his presentation tonight is there may be tweaks in certain categories that would actually…where he might recommend an increase in the amount of square footage.

Mr. Hughes: Maybe I could rephrase my suggestion? Why don't you tell us what you think that you could have that would make this work and then we'll go from there? And then, I agree with you we can tweak it later but right now what we have on fence…

Mr. Wolinsky: I think he just told you that if…if there was an excess that was requested, John just said we would be willing to give that amount of square footage up. I'm just saying, yes, subject to obviously this process we're going to, going through with your consultant who may in a particular given area, in one of the categories may say we may need some additional in one location that's all. That's all, that's all I was saying.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Thank you for answering all of that.

Mr. Wolinsky: I do have one question for your consultant which I think would be…I think is a…wearing my planning hat. What I got out of the presentation was that on the rear and the sides or any of these big buildings one of the purposes of utilization of signage is to help break up the massing in essence. And, I guess my question is where you have a rear and a side that fronts on a travel way, where it's visible from a travel way, would it not make sense to have some signage in order to…in those instances on those areas…in order to break up the massing of the building?

Mr. Berger: I think you're bringing up an issue that I think that…is another version of what was brought up here and the answer to that is is actually yes. It depends though on really and I think this is really why and I agree this is why this is a particularly tricky situation because you do have some stores that are in the complex that are really more integrated into the main street area and then you have others that just about are basically freestanding big box stores. They're not really…they're part of the complex area and are not part of the complex area. I think that in cases, in those particular cases, yes you could use it to break up the massing but that would have to be done extremely carefully. It would have to be looked at, you know, very closely and would only really be used for stores that generally would have to be apart, completely apart from the regular big box, the regular Marketplace complex. So, I think, yes I mean a lot of the other complexes we are going to look at they are going to have, they are going to have stores that are separated away and then they might have parking on a number of different sides. But generally that has to, as I said, that has to be planned very carefully. And that's the reason why these are very difficult complexes to develop signage plans for because you have some parts of it that are integrated into the whole complex and then you have other parts where the buildings are basically freestanding, stand alone pieces of architecture on their own. And I think that has to be looked at more carefully I guess.

Mr. McKelvey: But on the 84 side, on getting off 84 to get on Union Avenue and then cars coming off Union Avenue that's a dangerous intersection. And are you going to have a sign on 84? Those cars travel too fast there, they cut in and out, they cut each other off.

Mr. Bainlardi: If I could address that point? I remind the Board that on the back on each one of these buildings, Building A, Building B and Building E which face either 84 and/or the exit ramp there is no signage that is proposed that is specifically is precluded from being put on the rear of any of those buildings.

Mr. McKelvey: That's all I wanted to make sure of.

Mr. Bainlardi: And likewise on the rear of the Costco Building which is the larger building there and the two buildings in the back again those are service areas in the back and there's no proposed signage for those areas and again it's specifically prohibited.

Mr. McKelvey: O.K. 

Mr. Silverman: One of the items, the monument signs, the part of the reason for the pylon sign was to stay within the confines of the zoning and because we do have about six or seven big boxes that are adjacent to it. But there is a monument sign at each of the entrances, which is this sign, which is a substantial large-scale sign. This two sit together, what you're looking at is a scale (inaudible) you get drawings on that because the scales are different but we have at each of the three entrances a prepared large monument sign, as you suggested. We need that identity. This was in many respects for visibility and location of who the big boxes were. The fact that the Village Center was in there, the fact that JC Penney is there, Costco is there, Best Buy is there, all right, these are the identities we thought we'd have to use so really the size of this in adjustment to what the size we felt was the large Marketplace sign. Yes, I agree with you at each of the entrances we have a monument sign so the shopper knows that this is a complex. And I think a lot of it is in relation to the site plan where we have put these things, I mean we believe this one center however there are two segments of this one center. We've tried to unify this grouping in a style deliberately and then this grouping in a village style and I think we tried to show you that in the different drawings and in the colors that were done. For instance even on the Best Buy what we be carried through was we made these into murals rather than just put them on there on a wall on top of the masonry. O.K. we tried to integrate the colors and setback the panels, I mean, we're trying.

Mr. Berger: And obviously that part I don't get into the nuance of if, that part. And, obviously looking at the other complexes those are issues that were done in the other…those are specific issues that were brought up in the other complexes as well. But actually just to mention overall, particularly I don't think anybody would have a particular issue with the Marketplace signs that they're too small for the…they're not small, but the signs on the drawing. It's really the look in light of the other complexes; you can see, it's really hard to put a lot of information on those big store signs and I could see your goal is really to put the six big box stores on that particular sign and I think that they would probably would like…probably this Zoning Board and myself would probably like to see a more detailed version of that particular sign, you know to…I know it would be difficult to do. You don't quite know all what all those stores are. But I think, as the way it is now it’s a little difficult to understand that. 

Mr. Silverman: to Mr. Berger (Inaudible)

Mr. Berger: O.K.

Mr. Silverman: Also Craig, by way of reference this is not, these are not meant to be box type signs. These are meant to be backlit silhouette letters.

Mr. Berger: Well, that's not the issue here.

Mr. Silverman: Oh, O.K. But obviously there is a big difference and having just white type boxes with different names thrown on there than there is in the richness of a sign like this.

Ms. Drake: Can we see that colored picture?

Mr. Hughes: Thank you.

Ms. Eaton: How many more box stores do you intend on having? You show five.

Mr. Hughes: Seven.

Ms. Gennarelli: Saul, I'm sorry; you'll have to grab that other mic, thank you.

Mr. Silverman: These show right now six big boxes. It's very possible that a segment like this may become three stores. What we consider a big box, basically anything over about 20 to 25,000 sq. ft., right. Women's clothing stores, stores like that. O.K.? Arts and Crafts stores, they will run anywhere between 20, 25 up to about 40,000 feet, 45,000 feet and that's the proposal at here but these might be come three stores. This might become two stores.

Ms. Eaton: But you don't intend to build more? 

Mr. Silverman: No maam. We do not intend to build any more square footage than is on here.    

Ms. Drake: And, should those box "C" and "D" become three stores they would still be restricted to the signs based on the square footage of the building that would be there if there was two stores.

Mr. Silverman: You know, we…

Ms. Drake: It would be proportioned.

Mr. Silverman: Yes, proportionately we would adjust the schedule that we have here that is based really upon the length of the storefronts.

Ms. Drake: Right. That's what I meant.

Mr. Silverman: So, we have to adjust it accordingly.

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Hughes, did you have something?

Mr. Hughes: No. Thank you for answering those questions.

Ms. Drake: So then, based on the presentation that was given and the fact of the square footage of signs that you've showed us, is there anything that you would want to change in reference to that extra 2000 sq.ft. that you've asked for? Is there something you would say, all right being we have that 2000 sq.ft. and based on his presentation we would like to change something else, you know?  

Mr. Silverman: In other words, would I want to enlarge any of the signs?

Ms. Drake: Yes, I guess.  

Mr. Silverman: Well again the study might be or might relate to, you know, like the monument signs, I mean, I don't know how the Board feels. Maybe I should have drawn a bunch of people in each of these so there would have been a relationship to scale or a car?

Ms. Drake: Right.

Mr. Silverman: So there is a relationship to scale and I'd be happy to furnish the Board with that. We can do that quickly enough. John, as far as I'm concerned, I believe, we're O.K. with the square footage that we have here.

Ms. Drake: O.K. so therefore if we were to say that you'd to go down the 2000 sq.ft. that would be acceptable then and there isn't any other changes that you're really looking to do based on the presentation?

Mr. Silverman: Yes.

Mr. Maher: Based on the current figures you were originally requesting a variance of 9, 562 feet that's based on the additional 85 foot for the Costco Gas sign so that would reduce the extra you have left over was 2054, reducing it down roughly 21% to 7508 as the variance needed.

Mr. Bainlardi: As far as the extra 85 sq.ft. of the Costco, that's already allocated in the allowable signage in the square footage for Building "E". So in other words…

Mr. Maher: O.K.

Mr. Bainlardi: …the signage that's on the building, the Costco building itself is 1088 plus another 85 is already included in the 1198 that is already allocated to the Costco building.

Mr. Maher: O.K. so in essence then ultimately the variance will be less than that, it would be roughly 7420 or so. I mean that's quite a difference from 9560. Would you consider possibly making the large pylon sign less busy with less retailers on it?

Mr. Silverman: I think we can further study the idea of how to organize the material. The material, the consultant I'm sure will tell you, this is a complex that it's not on the roadway, there is not easy visibility, all right, to these signs. For the most part coming off the roadways you will not be able to see this complex and that's why we needed these identity signs at locations now. And we chose, because of the zoning ordinance, because we felt it was proper to choose only one location along Union Avenue. We didn't ask for the same type of sign at 52 or at the southerly entrance or the easterly entrance. I do think that we need the ability to do something like this and again we're talking about not a sign…that's one of the illustrations that was shown was a bunch of painted signs in a bunch of different…that's not it. The idea of this is to have completely organized letters, backlit letters as the Planning Board and the ARB insisted upon for a unified entity and that's the only place for this. Might this end up as six signs? Yes, it might end up as six signs. We were just showing to you what the maximum of it would be and if in fact we could do it. But personally, if there are only four signs or five signs in here I don't think the developer will have any problem with that but there are lease restrictions, there are lease requirements also and I remind the Board that you cannot see these buildings. Cannot see them at all.

Mr. McKelvey: They are also going to be directed when they get inside.

Mr. Silverman: There will be way signs, as the consultant explained, and those way signs are really safety, those are safety.

Mr. McKelvey: And I understand.

Mr. Silverman: And that's where they live but they will have to lead you via signage inside until you get to the point and say, 'oh, there's Costco now I can read their sign'.

Mr. McKelvey: Understood.

Mr. Hughes: Would it be safe to say, with the consensus of your group and our group, that we have an understanding here that you're willing to drop that reduction down to the figures we discussed this evening and we'll leave it open to the fact that maybe there will be more than these type of pylon signs on location as you get into the area where they could be useful? We don't want to create a lot of billboards. We don't want to have Las Vegas here. Would it be safe that the Board and the applicant agrees that's where we're trying to push this thing?

Mr. Wolinsky: Yes. I mean, but the…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me. I'm sorry. You are going to have to use the mic? Thanks.

Mr. Wolinsky: The only thing I'm a little bit fuzzy about Mr. Hughes is, is at what point in time are we going to the point where we know that? Is that something…are you saying we should…we'll go back to the Planning Board and work that out with them or…that's what I'm trying to understand?

Mr. Hughes: Well, no, I'm not suggesting that. Maybe I can phrase it a different way. Suppose you came back to us and said O.K. we know we're going to have the monument sign that has the Marketplace identity there and we're going to have a sign right next to it which would be its complement with a smaller Marketplace identifier on it and only those pertinent stores in that general proximity and then maybe there'll be another one of those signs in another 300-400 feet on the complex, 500 feet on the complex so that we're not having these big tall spires way out by the entranceway and that smaller more conducive signs would be permeated through the area inside the complex?

Mr. Wolinsky: I guess the question I'm asking, are you asking us to accomplish that before you make your decision?

Mr. Hughes: I would like to have a little bit more of a general guideline of what you think this is going to evolve to. One of the things we have a problem with is, we'll be at this point here and then you know you want to go back to the Planning Board and the Planning Board does their thing in a different way than we do and then we end up with a sign there and its got too much information on it and people are trying to read it and look at it and banging into each other and all that stuff. So we don't want to have the blob grow into a sign that has provisions for six signs and then six months down the road we have twelve.

Mr. Wolinsky: This would be my suggestion; I mean you've hired a very knowledgeable consultant. If we could have permission to work it out with the consultant with that understanding and get to a point where he thinks we've accomplished the, you know, after you know dealing with Saul here and accomplish what needs to be accomplished to make this appropriate then we'd come back.

Mr. Berger: In my former life, before I did this, I did signage programs for these types of projects and large scale urban projects and one of the…mostly big cities and generally what they do I mean to get around to make sure there's some input what you're suggesting I think is you need to have a clear guideline for saying that you guys are going to have to approve. And that approval is going to basically going to control the amount of information that's going to be on each individual sign to control the size to say this will never get beyond this maximum and that when we expand that this expansion will follow by a set of rules that we followed with the first complex. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K.  

Mr. Berger: That's generally what has to happen.

Mr. Hughes: So then yes is an answer to your question.

Mr. Wolinsky: Yes, so we need to work it out with…we have a set of guidelines they may need to be tweaked. O.K. They've already been looked at and essentially signed off on by the Planning Board but we have this additional level of review. They may need to be tweaked in light of the presentation tonight. We're willing to work with you guys to do that. We just…we're going to have to have the ability to communicate with this gentleman give him the lines, give him the guidelines, let him tweak em, comment on em and then come back to you and then close it down. 

Mr. Hughes: Counsel?

Mr. Donovan: Yes, I just want to make sure we all have a firm understanding of the process, so. Craig, I want to make sure that you have all the information that you need. I mean, he's indicated that whatever was submitted up to two weeks ago…right, is what…he was given, Betty?

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: Do you guys have additional?

Mr. Wolinsky: We haven't submitted anything within that two-week period that I'm aware of so he should have everything.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. And are we then headed in the direction where obviously you guys are going to talk. And then Craig, you're going to issue…this is a question not a statement…you're going to issue a written report back to the ZBA so the ZBA has something to take a look at before the 4th Thursday in April? 

Chairperson Cardone: April 24th.

Mr. Berger: That was my plan. I think my plan was to have this meeting today and yes, I was pretty sure I wasn't going to get everything right given it was such a short notice but the idea was to get additional input from today's meeting and be able to turn this into a more specific report.

Mr. Donovan: And, is that satisfactory to the Board? Is that?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: That sounds clear, yes. The public?

Chairperson Cardone: Right now I was going to ask for comments from the public as it relates to the sign variance only at this point. Do we have any comments relating to the sign variance?  

No Response.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Ms. Drake: I have one more question. Being this is the first time I've actually seen this and I'm actually comparing it with the drawing that you submitted. Obviously this is from a different location but this is relatively to the same scale that you're proposing at the Marketplace? In relation to the size of the cars other than the point (type size) will probably a little smaller?

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes, I think that the cap on top is…if you eliminate that cap and you just concentrated on the lower portions that's pretty much to scale.

Ms. Drake: And then, has the Planning Board required that it is going to be this color and it's not going to be, you know, a blue sign for Best Buy and another color for another store but it's going to be this consistent white background with the letters similar to this?

Has that been resolved with the Planning Board?

Mr. Bainlardi: Saul, I don't recall. Is that in the guideline? I don't think we limited color.

Mr. Silverman: No.

Ms. Drake: No, but I mean it will be consistent color like this. 

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes.

Ms. Drake: It's not going be each store picking out their own little…?

Mr. Bainlardi: Right. For instance Best Buy, Best Buy would typically like to use their tag…

Ms. Drake: Right.

Mr. Bainlardi: But we indicated to them they couldn't use their tag, they need to use pin lettering lit…silhouette lighting such as you see there so that we wouldn't have, you know, this mass assortment of different graphics and…

Ms. Drake: Right and I think that's what adds clutter to the sign. You know I think this is a nice looking sign and personally I don't have an objection to this type of sign but that's only my own opinion on this Board. But I can see where you were saying that if you have different, a lot of different stuff and its all different background colors and stuff it adds to the clutter of the sign. So I just was kind of trying to clarify how far the Planning Board has taken this requirement. I don't know if that helps any, at all.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to hold the Public Hearing open until next month?    

Mr. McKelvey: So moved.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

James Manley: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. And thank you, Mr. Berger, for your presentation.
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Applicant is seeking area variances for various side yard setbacks for proposed Lot #1, various side yards setbacks, rear yard setback, minimum lot building coverage, minimum lot surface coverage for proposed Lot #2 for a 4 (four) lot sub-division.

Chairperson Cardone: Next on our agenda WB Interchange Associates seeking area variances for various side yard setbacks for proposed Lot #1, various side yards setbacks, rear yard setback, minimum lot building coverage, minimum lot surface coverage for proposed Lot #2.

Mr. Wolinsky: Good evening, Madam Chairman, Members of the Board. Larry Wolinsky from the law firm of Jacobowitz & Gubitz on behalf of the applicant. I believe the only outstanding piece of information from last meeting on this request for variances was us to provide you a letter from the tenant stating that it required for economic reasons and financing reasons the need to own its individual lot. That letter has been presented. All the other information that we have presented in the prior hearing with respect to why these variances are needed and how they've been created. I think we've gone over that. It's all a matter of record at this point. We'd like, this evening, to try and close this out if we can. At least get the Public Hearing closed and if the Board feels inclined or is in the position to also take action.

Chairperson Cardone: And we also have at this time the amended findings statements, the SEQRA statements…

Mr. Wolinsky: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: …which we were also awaiting.

Mr. Wolinsky: That's correct. 

Chairperson Cardone: Is there any other further discussion from the Board? 

Mr. Hughes: As I've discussed before, I always have a certain apprehension about creating imaginary lines to do subdivisions with the prospect of the buildings being separated at that point and then having no further conforming use thereafter. It's a very difficult position to be put in to be asked to allow such a thing to go on. It's almost precedential in it's area of application. Your big buildings there, I forget what numbers you call them off the top of my head but there's talk that, it may be two buildings, it may be three buildings. You're asking us to give you a variance on something for a subdivision so to speak with zero clearances, with common walls with inside this great big building and you don't even know what is going to in there yet. So, I'm always reluctant to count chickens before they're hatched. To me, I think you have the cart way out in front of the horse on this one and I would need a lot more information about what happens in residue. Let's say that you take that store and you divide it and you put your demising wall, your firewall whatever you'd like to call it to separate the two stores with a zero line clearance. And store A, of A and B, goes belly up or if its A, B and C, store B in the middle goes belly-up and now you have all these separations and another tenant comes in and wants the wall 35 feet over this way. It makes a parking problem, it makes a signage problem, it makes a legal problem, it makes a white elephant possibly for the Town and the County and the State both if nothing can be done further after that building has gone belly-up because of the tenant situation. So, I'm not entirely convinced that we're at that point and I've been reviewing the flow chart that comes with everything that goes on in these planning kind of situations and maybe if your group could show me where you think you belong in this then I could be convinced. But until that point I think it's very premature to rule on something like this. This is something that I know its done and I know its common in the real estate world and you know these big stores do this all the time. I don't think this is an appropriate place or an appropriate parcel to pull something like this on. There's rights of ways that are in question still, there's an extreme imposition on a 20-mile long creek that's an estuary to the Hudson River and many other factors that hinge on the proper development of a property the size you're talking about, 130 acres of land that has an eastern border for the length of the whole water is on the Quassaick Creek and I'm very concerned about moving anything further forward that may harm the creek or may infringe on the wildlife and environment around the property.

Mr. Wolinsky: As far as the environmental concerns there's been, as you are well aware, a full environmental impact statement prepared. There's been an amended findings statement by the lead agency which recognizes and has held that these financing lot line changes and revisions and the variances that are required as a result of them have no impact whatsoever on the environment. You are correct in your statement that this is very common. It's certainly common in the Town of Newburgh. We've given you the multitude of examples of where this has already been done in the Town of Newburgh where the ZBA and the Town of Newburgh has already granted these variances. I am unaware of any situation and this has been going on for quite some time. I am personally unaware of any situation that has resulted in the problems that you…that you have raised. What I will tell you is that if there was a problem of the nature that you've identified and that would arise and I have to be honest with you I don't quite really understand how you…the problems you are identifying. But assuming they are legitimate problems that could arise those tenants at that point in time would have to come back before both the Planning Board and the ZBA to make adjustments before the Building Department would be in a position to render a determinations or issue Building Permits or Certificates of Occupancy for that use. So, I respectfully disagree. We are very far along in this process. We are extremely close to final approval from the Planning Board and I think we've made the record I think that we're prepared on this. If there's any additional specific…a specific piece of information that we need to supplement the record here to answer this we're happy to do that. But I can't really respond to, you know, these kinds of general conjecture kinds of situations with all due respect so I think I've explained here that if one of those kinds of scenarios were to arise and again this Town has a long track record of that and I'm not aware of any of these problems having occurred to date. It would have to come back before these Boards and that's the way it would get handled and the Board's would handle it at that time.

Mr. McKelvey: You're only talking about Costco and JC Penney right now wanting to own their land?

Mr. Wolinsky: That's correct.

Mr. McKelvey: They are the only two.

Mr. Wolinsky: That's correct. 

Mr. Hughes: Do you foresee in the future that anymore of this type of subdivision would go on because of those requirements?

Mr. Wolinsky: I have…I could not answer that. I don't know if, John if you could answer that? Well I mean I would think that with the other boxes it would be a possibility depending on the tenant but…

Mr. Bainlardi: I couldn't preclude, you know, the possibility that we could find ourselves in a situation where we've…want to bring a tenant into the shopping center and they have a similar requirement. What I could tell you at this point is we've been successful in our negotiations with other large boxes in being able to structure those as lease deals and to hold onto the fee. It's always our intent and typically the developers preference whenever possible to continue to own the land. These are situations where you have a particular tenant who is important to your center. You want to do business with them. You want to bring them into the fold so to speak and they have a particular requirement and we're willing to meet it. 

Mr. Hughes: So just from where I started asking questions and then the answers you gave me you see that flexibility in there. I don't like the creeping subdivisions. I don't like well we got "A" and then we're going to "B" tomorrow and "C" and "D" two and three years from now. You can understand my apprehension. 

Mr. Wolinsky: That's definitely not the intent. I think John stated it perfectly and accurately which is, you know, they want to lease these and at certain times when you have large national retail tenants that they don't want to that's often the case with those. You have those in other parts of the Town here as well and so if that were...if that were to happen we'd have to be right back here. We'd have to be right back before the Planning Board. I understand the issue of the creeping aspect of it and that is not the intent but there's no...I can affirmatively state for the record tonight, O.K. and you guys will correct me if I'm wrong, there is no other tenant that we're aware of than the ones that we've mentioned to you already that would required…that is requesting this at this point and time and that would require us to come back to you two months from now and say oops we're back in the situation.

Mr. Donovan: If I could comment briefly too on the issue of the precedent that would be set? Obviously, as I told you before everyone always asks, do we set a precedent, obviously everything you do sets a precedent. But we'd also have to analyze it; it would have to be the same or very similar type of facts. It's not as if we're given somebody a 1-foot side yard variance for a single-family residential home. In terms of this, you are going to have to look at another commercial area, another shopping complex, it would have to be similar on all fours and then my only other comment is that if you deny the variance application you're still going to get the same buildings. You've just made it the four of ownership will be different.

Mr. Hughes: Yes. We've had actually variances come here where the building is on one property and the sign is on another and worked all that out. I mean there's almost you can do.

Mr. Wolinsky: And I've got to tell you that it’s a…in suburban municipalities it’s a zoning issue and in the Hudson Valley most of the municipalities haven't dealt with this issue and everybody winds up at the ZBA. I can tell you from doing these projects in Poughkeepsie, in the Town of Wallkill, it's all the same thing. You'll always wind up at the ZBA. Municipalities just haven't enacted the regulations that would accommodate it. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments relating to this particular issue? Yes?

Mr. Gebhards: John Gebhards, 48 Wintergreen Avenue, Town of Newburgh. The concern that I would like to stress that the Board consider is the applicant saying 'of what they know now', when you obviously give the variance to a setback this is going to apply not only to the current…to the owner of that subdivided lot now but the subsequent owners in the future and build in to that the inability for appropriate landscaping and all around the building for some future owner you've taken away his rights to that by granting the variance. So I'd like for you to take that into considerations. This ground is still green and rearrangement of such that the appropriate setbacks could be made should be considered. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Any other questions, comments? Anything else from this Board? Do I have motion to close the Public Hearing?

Ms. Drake: I make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Maher: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes


James Manley: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Before proceeding the Board will take a short adjournment to confer with counsel regarding legal questions raised by tonight's applications. I would ask if you would please step out into the hallway. We'll call you in shortly. 

(Time Noted – 9:22 PM)
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Applicant is seeking area variances for various side yard setbacks for proposed Lot #1, various side yards setbacks, rear yard setback, minimum lot building coverage, minimum lot surface coverage for proposed Lot #2 for a 4 (four) lot sub-division.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of WB Interchange Associates, the Marketplace at Newburgh, the Planning Board is the lead agency, seeking area variances for various side yard setbacks for proposed Lot #1, various side yards setbacks, rear yard setback, minimum lot building coverage, minimum lot surface coverage for proposed Lot #2 for a 4 (four) lot sub-division. Do we have further discussion on this application?

No Response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval on this application? 

Ms. Drake: I so move to make a motion for approval for the area variances for the proposed Lot #1 and #2.

Ms. Eaton: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: No



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes






James Manley: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.
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Applicant is area variances for the allowable signage by street frontage and allowable one freestanding sign per lot to erect signs.

Chairperson Cardone: On other business, the Finkelstein application that was an Unlisted Action under SEQRA. Do we have a motion for a negative declaration?

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All in favor?

Aye All.

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.
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ZBA MEETING – MARCH 27, 2007

END OF MEETING                                           (Time Noted – 9:59 PM)

Chairperson Cardone: Everyone has had a chance to look at the January minutes, the February minutes and we'll do those separately. Do I have a motion to approve the January minutes? 

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

 Ms. Drake: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion to approve the February minutes? 

 Mr. Maher: So moved. 

 Ms. Eaton: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: Is there any further business? If not, I declare this meeting closed until...oh, we have a question. Yes?

Ms. Doderer: My name is Eleanor Doderer, 83 Wintergreen Avenue, Town of Newburgh. I would like to read some comments concerning the approval of the Planning Board and the project on Noel Drive where the Planning Board overruled the Zoning Board's decision. I would like to read this. Since this is the only opportunity to read comments about actions that were taken by the Zoning Board. If I may, I'd like to read a letter?

Chairperson Cardone: Certainly, go ahead.

Ms. Doderer: Thank you. I would like to submit comments on the decision by the Planning Board to overrule the Zoning Board's need for additional parking spaces for the proposed pharmacy with the Sembler project on Noel Drive. A letter was submitted by SOS and read by John Gebhards at the Town Board meeting addressing this issue and to my knowledge no response or comment has been made. To quote a Mid Hudson Times article on 3/19/08 "although the suit would be warranted and legally successful it would not be in the best interest of the taxpayers, Manley said". I object to the fact the Town Zoning Board chose to make this decision without input from the Town residents and taxpayers. In my opinion this is much more than saving the taxpayers money. This is about allowing the Town Planning Board appointed by our elected officials crossing boundaries and assuming power, which by law they do not have. I believe this sets a very dangerous precedent. The Town Planning Board in its capacity as lead agency for many projects in the Town already has tremendous power. If we allow this situation to proceed without further examination and perhaps legal action what is to stop the Planning Board from repeating this action again? I also object to the fact that by the Town Zoning Board refusing to pursue legal action hoping to save taxpayers money, in effect says that if the public wished to take legal action they may but the Town will not. I am sure we are all very well aware that the cost for such an action would probably be in the tens of thousands of dollars. Where would the average citizen get this amount of money? And to be perfectly honest why should the residents pay for a mistake, which the Town Planning Board has made? Also, by not checking this type of behavior immediately I feel that this will give the Planning Board unofficial permission to repeat these types of actions. I firmly believe it is the responsibility of the Town Zoning Board to pursue this matter further and hope that it is done quickly. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Yes? 

Mr. Gebhards: John Gebhards, 48 Wintergreen Avenue, I'm here this evening representing the organization Save Open Space which is a community organization concerned with actions in the community in terms of development and other proceedings such as that. On March 17, we wrote a letter to the Town Board regarding the subject of the overruling of the ZBA by the Planning Board on the proposed pharmacy and bank at Noel Drive. Copies of this letter were sent to the individuals of the Board and I would like to submit a copy of this and forego reading it here tonight. I'd like to submit to be included in the minutes of the meeting.

Chairperson Cardone: You may do so.

(Mr. Gebhards submitted the letter to the Zoning Board Secretary.)

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Mr. Gebhards: Our concern is that we continue to be here in the Town of Newburgh a Town based on law not based on individual decisions of different Boards and all and we urge the ZBA to pursue setting this matter right. If there was an illegal action taken it should be set right and we urge the Zoning Board to go back to the Town Board and express the concern, the concern of the public that this matter be corrected. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Following is the letter submitted from Save Open Space, dated March 17, 2008 to Mr. Wayne Booth, Supervisor, Town of Newburgh and Members of the Town of Newburgh Board 

SAVE OPEN SPACE

PO Box 7268

Newburgh, NY 12550

March 17, 2008

Mr. Wayne Booth, Supervisor, Town of Newburgh

Members of the Town Board

1496 Route 300

Newburgh, NY 12550

Re: Town of Newburgh ZBA vs. Planning Board

       Proposed Pharmacy and Bank at Noel Drive

Dear Supervisor and Town Board: 

On December 27, 2007 the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) duly considered the existing Town Zoning Code and made a determination that the variance requested by Sembler Company for reducing the required parking spaces from 114 to 82 was not warranted and could be considered to be a dangerous precedent.

On February 7, 2008 the Planning Board seemed to be persuaded by the applicant that under Town Law paragraph 185-13(C)(1) the Planning Board had the sole right to determine the number of parking spaces. The applicant argued that this store is primarily a pharmacy, not a retail store. The Planning Board, based on legal counsel, chose to consider the “pharmacy” category is not specified in the code. The Planning Board was thereby empowered to make the parking space allotment determination. 

The meeting minutes lack any record of the Planning Board giving any consideration to the ZBA’s decision, and based on an incorrect interpretation of the law, it proceeded to approve a number of parking spaces less that what the Town Zoning Code calls for. It seems that this decision was dispatched with unusual speed, having the applicant come before the Planning Board only a few days after the ZBA’s decision.

As to the merits of the Planning Board granting the variance, the record clearly shows that this Walgreen Pharmacy has more than twice as much space dedicated to general retail as to prescription and non-prescription drugs put together. How can it be reasonably rationalized that this store does not classify as retail? Additionally, the Planning Board seemingly sets a dangerous precedent by disregarding, no, even worse, not even considering the ZBA’s ruling. And, it appears that an incorrect interpretation of Town Law, paragraph 185-13(C)(1) has actually resulted in a violation of existing Town of Newburgh Zoning Code.

It is unfortunate that the legal counsel represents both the Planning Board and the ZBA as this places counsel in a potential conflict of interest. It seems that counsel did not advise the ZBA that their ruling was subject to being over ridden by the Planning Board. It appears also that an incorrect interpretation of Town Law and the legality of what the Planning Board has done is a question that may need to be resolved by the court.

Why was there a rush on the part of the Planning Board to move ahead with this project, especially when the Orange County Trust project, with which it is coupled for roadwork, was apparently not ready to move ahead? Why did the Chairman of the Planning Board proceed to execute a resolution that set a 30-day clock running on approval for this project?

The situation where one Town Board disregards the findings of another Town Board in many eyes appears illegal and is in need of an outside agency’s review. Situations such as this promote an atmosphere that allows developers to pit one board against another and we, as a community and taxpayers, are left to pay the consequences. Members of the Planning Board and the Zoning Board of Appeals are appointed to serve the people of the Town Of Newburgh by elected members of the Town Board. We urge Mr. Booth and the members of the Town Board to be responsible leaders and to take immediate and appropriate act to resolve this issue. As elected officials, it would seem it is necessary for the Town Board to take some action against appointed board members who they have placed in these positions of authority.

Sincerely, 

Save Open Space Executive Committee

Eleanor Doderer

Laura Kohlmann

Lisabeth Riach

John Gebhards

Cc: ZBA  

Mr. Donovan: Before we adjourn, just one technical thing I forgot to do relative to area variances (referring to WB Interchange, the Marketplace at Newburgh). The Planning Board adopted the amended findings, which is what they need to do as lead agency. Just because we are ruling on that we need to also adopt those findings as it relates to the application we just ruled on. So, we just need a motion to adopt the findings issued by the Planning Board on, Grace if you have it there, the amended findings March…I want to say the 6th.

Chairperson Cardone: I did have it a minute ago.

Mr. Donovan: Sorry. I know you had it when you read it. If I told you then, you would have the date.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Donovan: March 6th. Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes. 

Mr. Donovan: So we just need a motion to adopt the amended findings where the Planning Board has indicated that there is no adverse environmental impact by issuing relative to the variance for the area variance. Have I made that clear?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Ms. Drake: I'll make a motion to adopt the finding statements from March 6th from the Planning Board in reference to the area variance.

Mr. Maher: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: No



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

James Manley: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried. Do we have any further business?

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion we adjourn.

Ms. Drake: Second.           

All those in favor?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: The meeting is adjourned.
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